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July 6, 2005 
 
 
The Honorable Ralph A. Walker 
Director, Administrative Office of the Courts 
Post Office Box 2448 
Raleigh, North Carolina  27602-2448 
 
Dear Judge Walker: 
 
The Office of the State Auditor received an allegation through the State Auditor’s Hotline 
concerning foreign language (Spanish) interpreters.  The anonymous complaint alleged that 
an interpreter was receiving payment from non-English speaking defendants, while at the 
same time being paid by the State.  If confirmed, this would be a violation of Administrative 
Office of the Court (AOC) policy, “Guidelines for the Use of Foreign Language Interpreting 
and Translating Services in the Court System”, chapter 3, section D.  “An interpreter may 
not (1) bill twice for the same period of time or (2) bill both the State and the indigent non-
English speaking person.”  Such actions may also violate State law or policy. 
 
Background 

The court system has experienced a steady increase in non-English speaking defendants and 
participants, which will likely continue.  The court has the inherent authority and discretion 
to appoint interpreters as necessary.  Interpreters are paid by the State through the court and 
AOC using form AOC-G-107 “MOTION, APPOINTMENT AND ORDER  
AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF INTERPRETER” (attached). 

Non-English speaking defendants and participants may come from cultures where payment 
of a tip, gratuity or compensation directly to court personnel is the norm.  Due to the 
language barrier, workload and focus of the court while court is in session, the opportunity 
for violation of AOC policy or state law is plausible. 
 
Although we did not substantiate the specific allegation above, interviews with the Clerk of 
Court and the acting Chief District Court Judge for the jurisdiction confirmed that the same 
or similar concerns have been raised with some regularity.  Both confirmed that they would 
reinforce the AOC policy with all concerned. 
 
In addition to reinforcing the present AOC policy, the following procedural changes may 
strengthen the internal controls associated with the use of court-appointed foreign language 
interpreters. 
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Recommendations 

 
1. AOC should consider adding language to form AOC-G-107 under the certification 

section affirming that the signing interpreter requesting payment has not received nor 
will they accept any other payment or gratuity for the same services. 

2. AOC should consider requesting that presiding judges in open court inform non-
English speaking defendants and participants that they are not to make any payment 
to the court-appointed interpreter.  This could be done enmass at the beginning of 
court as well as on an as needed/as appropriate basis. 

3. AOC should consider the development of internal processes to monitor, audit and 
investigate various interpreter concerns.  A Spanish-speaking investigator may be 
employed for this. 

 
General Statute§147-64.6(c)(12) requires the State Auditor to provide the Governor, the 
Attorney General, and other appropriate officials with written notice or apparent instances 
of violations of penal statutes or apparent instances of malfeasance, misfeasance, or 
nonfeasance by an officer or employee.  In accordance with that mandate, and our standard 
operating practice, we are providing copies of this management letter to the Governor, the 
Attorney General and other appropriate officials.   
 
If you have any questions or wish to discuss this matter further, please contact us.  We 
appreciate the cooperation received from your staff during our review.   
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
Leslie W. Merritt, Jr., CPA, CFP 
State Auditor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Management letters and responses receive the same distribution as audit reports.
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